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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF TEXAS

SHERMAN DIVISION

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION,

Plaintiff ,

v. : COMPLAINT

1) DEAN FOODS COMPANY, and
2) JOHN D . ROBINSON,

Defendants .

4 :d4& 3 ), l

Plaintiff, United States Securities and Exchange Commission, files this Complaint

against Defendants Dean Foods Company ("Dean") and John D . Robinson

("Robinson")(collectively, "Defendants"), and would respectfully show the Court as

follows :

SUMMARY

1 . This case concerns Defendants' involvement in an illicit income recognitio n

scheme perpetrated by Fleming Companies, Inc . ("Fleming") .

2 . Starting in late 2001, Fleming implemented a plan to improperly recognize

material amounts of income to compensate for forecasted earnings shortfalls . Dean, a

Fleming vendor, aided Fleming's scheme by providing a side letter that falsely described a

$2.5 million payment to Fleming. Robinson, who during the relevant time was the Senior

Vice President of Sales and Marketing for the Dean Dairy Group, a business unit of Dean,

was responsible for dealing with Fleming and signed the false letter .

3 . Based on the conduct alleged herein, Dean and Robinson aided and

abetted Fleming's violations of Sections 17(a)(2) and 17(a)(3) of the Securities Act of 1933



("Securities Act") [15 U .S.C. §§ 77q(a)(2) and 77q(a)(3)] and Sections 13(a) and

13(b)(2)(A) of the Exchange Act of 1934 ("Exchange Act") [15 U.S .C. §§ 78m(a) and

78m(b)(2)(A)], and Rules 12b-20, 13a-13 and 13b2-1, thereunder, [17 C .F.R. §§ 240.12b-

20, 240.13a-13 and 240 .13b2-1 ] .

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

4. The Commission brings this action pursuant to the authority conferred upon

it by Section 20(d) of the Securities Act [15 U .S.C. § 77t(d)], and Sections 21(d)(3) and 27

of the Exchange Act [15 U .S .C. §§ 78u(d)(3) and 78aa] .

5. This ouitiiasjui-isdictioiiovei-tliisactioii,aiidvei, ..,.,. ..".i-,pui-suaiitto

Sections 20(d) and 22(a) of the Securities Act [15 U .S .C. §§ 77t(d) and 77v(a)], and

Sections 21 (d)(3) and 27 of the Exchange Act [15 U .S .C. §§ 78u(d)(3) and 78aa] .

6. Defendants, directly or indirectly, have made use of the means and

instrumentalities of interstate commerce, or of the mails, or of the facilities of a national

exchange in connection with the acts, practices, and courses of action alleged herein .

7 . Venue is proper because Fleming is headquartered in Lewisville, Texas, and

certain of the acts and transactions described herein took place in the Eastern District of

Texas.

DEFENDANTS

8. Dean , a Delaware corporation headquartered in Dallas, Texas, is a

processor and distributor of milk and other dairy products .

9 . Robinson , of Dallas, Texas, was Senior Vice President of Sales and

Marketing for the Dean Dairy Group, a business unit of Dean .
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OTHER RELEVANT ENTITY

10. Fleming is an Oklahoma corporation headquartered in Lewisville, Texas .

Fleming's stock is registered pursuant to Section 12 of the Exchange Act and, prior to filing

for Chapter 11 bankruptcy protection in April 2003, its stock traded on the New York Stock

Exchange. Before bankruptcy, Fleming was the nation's largest grocery wholesaler and a

retail grocery operator with approximately 50 distribution centers nationwide and more

than 100 retail stores throughout the Midwestern and Western United States . In 2001,

Fleming reported approximately $15 .6 billion in revenues and $23 .3 million in profits . I n

FACTS

Fleming 's improper initiatives to meet earnings expectations

11 . During 2001 and the first half of 2002, and following a period of poor

financial performance, Fleming improperly executed a series of transactions, called

"initiatives," to fabricate earnings and "bridge the gap" between actual operating results

and Wall Street expectations . In these initiatives, Fleming improperly structured otherwise

ordinary transactions in forms that, on paper, would justify and maximize an immediate

increase in earnings .

12. One of Fleming's frequently used initiatives was accelerating recognition of

up-front payments received under forward-looking vendor agreements . Specifically,

Fleming persuaded vendors to provide side letters that described up-front payments-that

Fleming and the vendors plainly intended to secure future rights and services-as

compensating some form of past performance, such as rebates or expenses . Fleming

then used these letters to immediately book the entire up-front payment as an offset t o
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expenses, rather than over time as generally accepted accounting principles ("GAAP")

required .

13. As designed, the illicit reduction in expenses by Fleming significantly inflated

the company's earnings in the fourth quarter of 2001 and the first two quarters of 2002 and

allowed Fleming to meet securities analysts' earnings expectations .

Dean 's part icipation in Fleming 's inflated earnings

14 . In early 2002, Fleming and Dean began negotiating a supply agreement

under which Dean would provide Fleming's retail stores with milk for three years .

behalf. Throughout the negotiations, Fleming made it clear that, to receive the supply

agreement, Dean needed to make an "up-front" payment of approximately $2 million .

Ultimately, the parties agreed on an up-front payment of $2 .5 million .

15 . As the negotiations were concluding, Fleming demanded that the payment

provision be removed from the supply agreement and supplied Dean with a letter

describing the payment as a "rebate" for "past performance ." Fleming knew it had not

earned any such rebate in this instance and, up to that point in the negotiations, the up-

front payment was understood to be consideration for the future business being

negotiated .

16. At the time of negotiations, Fleming was a sizable customer of Dean's

dairy operations. Throughout negotiations, Dean knew it had no existing obligation to

pay Fleming any rebate and that the $2 .5 million payment was to secure the supply

agreement.
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17. Fearing that Fleming would choose a different supplier, Dean acquiesced

to Fleming's demand and Robinson signed the letter . To protect its interests, Dean

demanded a penalty provision in the supply agreement that obligated Fleming to repay

a prorated portion of the $2 .5 million if Fleming breached its contractual obligations .

18. In March 2002, Dean provided Fleming the requested side letter and up-

front payment, but only after Fleming signed the supply agreement . Fleming used the

side letter to justify recognizing the entire $2 .5 million as an offset to expenses in the

first quarter of 2002, which accounted for approximately $ .03 per share of the $ .52 per

g reported as earnings for the quarter .

19 . Contrary to GAAP, Fleming relied on Dean's letter to justify recording the

$2 .5 million as an offset to expenses, which equaled approximately 6% of the earnings

Fleming reported for the first quarter . Fleming included these misleading figures in its

Form 10-Q for the first quarter ended April 20, 2002, and in publicly disseminated press

releases . Fleming incorporated the first quarter Form 10-0 into registration statements

on Forms S-3, S-8, and S-4 filed with the Commission during the summer of 2002 .

FIRST CLAI M

Aiding and Abetting Fleming 's Violations
of Sections 17(a)(2) and 17(x(3) of the Securities Act

(Against Dean and Robinson )

20 . Paragraphs I through 19 are realleged and incorporated by reference .

21 . Based on the conduct alleged herein, Fleming violated Sections 17(a)(2)

and 17(a)(3) of the Securities Act [15 U .S .C . §§ 77q(a)(2) and 77q(a)(3)] .

SEC v. Dean Foods Company, at al.
COMPLAINT

5



22. Defendants Dean and Robinson, acting alone or in concert with others, in

the manner set forth above, knowingly provided substantial assistance to Fleming in

connection with its violations of Sections 17(a)(2) and 17(a)(3) as alleged herein .

23 . By reason of the foregoing, Dean and Robinson aided and abetted

Fleming's violations of Sections 17(a)(2) and 17(a)(3) of the Securities Act [15 U .S.C. §§

77q(a)(2) and 77q(a)(3)] .

SECOND CLAIM

Aiding and Abetting Fleming 's Violations
of Sections 1 3(a) and 1 3(b)(2)(A ) of the Exchange Act and Rule s

a-1 3
and 13b2-1 Thereunde

r

(Against Dean and Robinson )

24. Paragraphs I through 19 are realleged and incorporated by reference .

25. Based on the conduct alleged herein, Fleming violated Sections 13(a) and

13(b)(2)(A) of the Exchange Act [15 U .S.C. §§ 78m(a) and 78m(b)(2)(A)1 and Rules 12b-

20, 13a-13 and 13b2-1 thereunder [17 C .F.R. §§ 240.12b-20, 240 .13a-13 and 240.13b2-

11 .

26. Defendants Dean and Robinson, acting alone or in concert with others, in

the manner set forth above, aided and abetted Fleming, as an issuer of a security

registered pursuant to Section 12 of the Exchange Act, in its failing to file with the

Commission, in accordance with rules and regulations the Commission has prescribed,

information and documents required by the Commission to keep reasonably current the

information and documents required to be included in or filed with an application or

registration statement filed pursuant to Section 12 of the Exchange Act and annual reports

and quarterly reports as the Commission has prescribed .
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27. Defendants Dean and Robinson, acting alone or in concert with others, in

the manner set forth above, provided substantial assistance to Fleming, who, directly or

indirectly, failed to make and keep books, records, and accounts, which, in reasonable

detail, accurately and fairly reflected Fleming's transactions and dispositions of its assets .

28. By reason of the foregoing, Dean and Robinson aided and abetted

Fleming's violations of Sections 13(a) and 13(b)(2)(A) of the Exchange Act [15 U .S.C. §§

78m(a) and 78m(b)(2)(A)] and Rules 12b-20, 13a-13 and 13b2-1 thereunder [17 C.F.R. §§

240.12b-20, 240.13a-13 and 240 .13b2-1] .

The Commission respectfully requests that the Court :

1 .

Enter an order directing Dean to pay a $400,000 civil money penalty pursuant to

Section 21(d)(3) of the Exchange Act [15 U .S.C. § 78u(d)(3)] and Section 20(d) of the

Securities Act [15 U.S.C. § 77t(d)] .

11 .

Enter an order directing Robinson to pay a $50,000 civil money penalty pursuan t

to Section 21(d)(3) of the Exchange Act [15 U .S .C. § 78u(d)(3)] and Section 20(d) of the

Securities Act [15 U .S .C. § 77t(d)] .

Grant such further relief as the Court deems just and proper .
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Respectfully submitted ,

Of Counsel :

SPENCER C. BARASCH
D.C. Bar No . 388886
DAVID L. PEAVLER
Texas Bar No . 00784738
JAMES E. ETRI
Texas Bar No . 2400206 1
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TIMOTHY P. IgAVIS
(Attorney in charge)
Texas Bar No . 00798134

Attorney for Plaintiff
Securities and Exchange Commission
Burnett Plaza, Suite 190 0
801 Cherry Street, Unit #18
Fort Worth, TX 76102-6882
(817) 978-643 8
(817) 978-4927 (fax)
E-Mail : davistp@sec.gov
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